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The Burton Brothers store is a roughly square building, two stories high, with 
a low-pitched roof. The facade consists of two identical storefronts facing 
High Street. The left, or east, storefront has always been a hardware store; 
the west section was at one time a motion-picture theatre, but is now the appliance 
department of the hardware store.

The street level, or main floor, features original plate glass windows. Of the 
two doors, only the west one remains as a wood-framed glass door. The left door 
is a modern aluminum concession to the fire laws.

Atop the facade is an elaborate pressed metal cornice, imitating in style and detail 
the cast-iron and wood cornices that were popular a generation earlier. On each of 
the two facade elements there are three windows in the second story. The windows 
are bracketed with tin trim that encloses panels in an urn motif. Another cornice 
over the modern sign above the storefronts is also of elaborate pressed steel.

The rest of the facade contains pressed sheet metal imitations of rusticated cement 
blocks. This same covering is found on the east wall, along Spring Alley. The west 
wall, formerly a party wall, is unembellished.

Inside, the east half of the building contains original floor-to-ceiling hardware 
cabinets, a very early counter, a glass-in office, and some early gondolas. Modern 
fixtures are interspersed. The floor is tongue-and-groove pine, as is the sheathing 
on the inside of the walls. The west half contains a portion of a pressed metal 
ceiling, indicating that it was once subdivided into several rooms. Today, the 
front half of this section is cleared as an appliance store. The back half, with 
remnants of a stage, or shelf, is partitioned off as a repair department.

Upstairs, the stock room over the east portion remains open and unfinished. The 
diagonal sheathing boards may be clearly seen. Massive pegged timbers rest on 
posts to support the roof structure. Over the western half is an apartment, which 
is unused at present.

There are several contemporary commercial structures along High Street nearby, 
but all have been extensively modernized. To the rear, off the nominated property, 
is the Martin House, purported to be one of the oldest houses in Seaford; it once 
stood on the site now occupied by the store.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Burton Brothers Hardware Store is one of the last surviving examples of a type 
of decorative metal work that was popular for a brief period during the latter part 
of the nineteenth century. Elaborately wrought, galvanized pressed sheet metal 
embellishes the entire exterior of two walls, except the windows and doorways. The 
design used in this particular example reflects the height of the technology in this 
type of sheathing.

Cast-iron fronts and woodwork imitating stone were introduced at the middle of the 
century. By the 1870's, pressed sheet metal was being used extensively in the form 
of elaborate cornices for parapet walls and roofs. Gradually, sheet material became 
available for entire embellished facades, replacing the heavier and more expensive 
cast-iron.

Galvanized sheathing had the advantage of being a fireproof covering for a wooden 
building, which needed minimum maintenance. When W. S. Burton built his hardware 
store on High Street around 1900, he chose this material. Unlike the other large 
Seaford commercial buildings of the period, which were of masonry, the Burton store 
is strongly built of frame with diagonal yellow pine sheathing, it was unusual 
when it was built, and unique today.

Since its construction, the building has housed the Burton Hardware Store. W. S. 
Burton operated the business until around 1918, when he leased it to another 
operator. His sons, around 1926, took over the building under the name of Burton 
Brothers, which continues to this day.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION !

The nominated area contains the store and its adjacent sidewalks along High 
Street and Spring Alley.
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